
 

 

 
 
 
 
Please ask for Charlotte Kearsey 
Direct Line: 01246 345236 
Email: committee.services@chesterfield.gov.uk 
 
The Chair and Members of Joint 
Cabinet and Employment & General 
Committee 

 

 13 June 2022 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 

Please attend a meeting of the JOINT CABINET AND EMPLOYMENT & 
GENERAL COMMITTEE to be held on TUESDAY, 21 JUNE 2022 at 10.00 am in 
Committee Room 1, Town Hall, the agenda for which is set out below. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1(Public Information) 
 

1.    Declaration of Members' and Officers' Interests relating to items on the 
Agenda  
 

2.    Apologies for Absence  
 

3.    Minutes (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

4.    Real Living Wage Implementation (Pages 7 - 18) 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and Monitoring Officer 

 
  

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



JC&E&G 22.02.22 

1 
 
 

JOINT CABINET AND EMPLOYMENT & GENERAL COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022 
 

Present:- 
 

Councillor Serjeant (Chair) 

 
Councillors Blank 

D Collins 
K Falconer 
Holmes 
J Innes 
 

Councillors Ludlow 
Mannion-Brunt 
T Murphy 
Sarvent 
Simmons 

Non-Voting 
Members  

P Innes   

 
*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme 
 

6    DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS 
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

7    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Davenport, Brittain 
and P Gilby. 
 

8    MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the minutes of the meeting of Joint Cabinet and Employment & 
General Committee held on 20 July, 2021 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair. 
 

9    EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED –  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



JC&E&G 22.02.22 

2 
 
 

That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

10    HOUSING RESTRUCTURE PHASE 1  
 
The Service Director - Housing submitted a report seeking approval for 
the proposed restructure of the Housing Directorate. 
 
The proposed restructure had been designed to maintain and improve the 
Councils ability to deliver priority outcomes for Chesterfield’s 
communities.  
 
The restructure would be delivered in two phases. The first phase 
covered the housing management, careline and statutory housing 
functions. The second phase would cover the asset management, capital 
programme and operational property functions. 
 
The current and proposed structures were attached at Appendix A of the 
officer’s report.  
 
The report provided details on the financial implications and an equalities 
impact assessment had been completed. It was explained that the 
proposals had been the subject of consultation with all affected staff and 
their trade union representatives.  
 
*RESOLVED 
 

1. That the establishment of a new staffing structure and ways of 
working for the Housing Directorate, which provides leadership and 
operational capacity to deliver cohesive proactive customer 
focussed services, be approved.  
 

2. That the Phase 1 Housing Restructure and the associated funding 
arrangements be approved.  

 
3. That the proposed timescales for the Phase 2 Restructure of the 

Housing Property Service be approved. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISIONS 
 

Page 4



JC&E&G 22.02.22 

3 
 
 

1. The Housing Directorate delivers two fundamental functions, the 
management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock and 
the provision of key statutory functions including homelessness and 
private sector housing. Reshaping the approach to delivering these 
services is designed to ensure that there are clear and effective 
customer pathways so that we improve the quality of life for local 
people, a key priority within the Council Plan.  
 

2. Following the publication of the Social Housing White Paper the 
management and maintenance of Council Housing will be subject to 
a regulatory framework governed by the Regulator of Social 
Housing. The proposed service reshape prepares and future proofs 
the Housing Service to enable the Council to meet these new 
responsibilities.  
 

3. Development of the Phase 2 Housing Property Service reshape is 
expected to begin in the Spring of 2022 once Phase 1 has been 
approved. The aim is to deliver a comprehensive repairs, 
maintenance and investment service driven by quality, customer 
service and cost management to respond effectively the challenges 
of regulatory compliance, the climate change agenda, fuel poverty 
and the upcoming review of the decent homes’ standard. 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



For publication 

 

Real Living Wage Employer 

 

Meeting: 

 

Joint Cabinet and Employment and General Committee 

Date:  

 

21 June 2022 

Cabinet 

portfolio: 

 

Customers and Business Transformation 

Directorate: 

 

Digital, HR and Customer Services 

For publication  

 

 

 

1.0 Purpose of the report 

 

1.1 This report provides members with information on the new real living wage 

for the 2022-2023 financial year.  It seeks approval to align the minimum 

rate which Chesterfield Borough Council pays to its employees to the new 

real living wage rate of £9.90 per hour from 1 April 2022.  

 

2.0 Recommendations 

 

2.1 That approval is given to implement the real living wage of £9.90 per hour 

from 1 April 2022, enabling Chesterfield Borough Council to continue to be 

a real living wage employer.   

 

2.2 That elected members approve that £34,000 (including oncosts) can be 

taken from the budget risk reserve to fund the increased pay bill during the 

2022-2023 financial year.  Ongoing costs will need to be included within the 

revised assumptions for the medium-term financial plan as part of the 

budget process. 

 

3.0 Reason for recommendations 

 

3.1 Chesterfield Borough Council is committed to providing fair pay and good 

working conditions for employees.  Increasing the minimum rate of pay to 

the level of the independently calculated real living wage will ensure that 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



the wages which are paid to our employees are sufficient to meet the cost 

of living.  

 

4.0 Report Details 

 

Background 

4.1 The real living wage provides a benchmark for responsible employers who 

choose to offer a rate of base pay that meets the basic cost of living in the 

UK.  It is calculated independently by the Resolution Foundation and is 

overseen by the Living Wage Commission.  It has been in place since 2011. 

 

4.2 The real living wage is higher than the government’s national living wage 

rate. It is informed by minimum income standards, which reflect the level 

of income which is required by households to reach a socially acceptable 

living standard. The rate used is determined by reviewing the cost of a 

basket of household goods and services each year.   In comparison, the 

statutory national minimum wage is based on a target to reach two thirds 

of median earnings by 2024 and does not feature any consideration of 

living standards. 

 

4.3 Organisations can apply (at a cost) to be formally accredited as a real living 

wage employer.  Accreditation requires that the organisation pays at least 

the real living wage to all employees within six months of the change in 

rate. Chesterfield Borough Council has chosen not to seek formal 

accreditation as a real living wage employer, but elected members have 

committed to continue to monitor the real living wage rate and to annually 

consider its implementation as a minimum rate of base pay for employees 

if this is higher than the National Joint Committee (NJC) pay scales for Local 

Government.   

 

Payment of the real living wage in Chesterfield Borough Council 

4.4 Chesterfield Borough Council first introduced the real living wage in April 

2016.    

 

4.5 In April 2018, the NJC annual pay review resulted in the lowest rate of pay 

being raised above the real living wage rate, negating the need for the real 

living wage to be implemented. 

 

4.6 In April 2020, the real living wage rose again to a level which was above that 

of the lowest NJC pay band and elected members approved that the 

minimum rate of pay be increased to the real living wage rate of £9.30 per 

hour.     

Page 8



 

4.7 In April 2021, the real living wage increased further, to £9.50 per hour, and 

councillors agreed to uplift the hourly rate of employees on Grades 1 and 

2 of the NJC pay scales, on the basis that until the national pay award was 

announced, these employees would be paid below the real living wage.  

This affected 91 employees within Chesterfield Borough Council.    

 

4.8 The real living wage for the financial year 2022-2023 has risen to £9.90 per 

hour and it is recommended that the Council’s minimum pay rates are 

uplifted to this amount from 1 April 2022, so that Chesterfield Borough 

Council continues to pay wages that reflect living costs and are enough for 

people to live.  

 

4.9 The number of employees in Chesterfield Borough Council who need to 

receive an increase in their pay rates so that they are paid the real living 

wage is increasing.  Employees on scale points 1 – 3 of the NJC salary bands 

are now in scope to receive an increased payment.  

 

4.10 If elected members approve the implementation of the real living wage 

from 1 April 2022, a total of 257 employees (129.67 FTE) will receive an 

increase in pay. This is broken down as follows:  

 

i. Scale Point 1 – 93 employees (65.53 FTE) who are currently paid an 

hourly rate of £9.50.  

ii. Scale Point 2 – 14 employees (3.78 FTE) who are currently paid an 

hourly rate of £9.60.  

iii. Scale Point 3 – 150 employees (60.36 FTE) who are currently paid 

an hourly rate of £9.79.  

 

4.11 A budget of £81,200 per annum (including oncosts) is required to 

implement the real living wage to those employees identified in 4.10 above.  

 

4.12 The Council has already provisioned a 2% increase in pay for its’ employees 

in the 2022–2023 budget which will offset some of this cost.  However, if 

elected members approve the implementation of the real living wage, there 

will be an in-year budget gap of £34,000 (with oncosts) as moving to the real 

living wage is above the 2% increase which was forecast.   

 

4.13 This increase can be met through use of the Council’s budget risk reserve, 

with the ongoing additional costs built into the base budget. 

 

 

Page 9



 

5.0 Alternative options 

 

5.1 Elected members could choose not to implement the real living wage in this 

financial year. Whilst there would not be a direct increase in pay budget by 

implementing this option, it would mean that 257 employees do not receive 

earnings which are line with the cost of living.   

 

5.2 The difference between the current pay rate of our lowest paid employees 

and the real living wage equates to the equivalent of three months of food 

or 10 weeks of housing costs.  Failure to increase employee pay in line with 

the real living wage could therefore have a negative impact on the health 

and wellbeing of our workforce who may struggle to meet the cost-of-living 

rises. This may result in unintended financial consequences for Chesterfield 

Borough Council through increased absence, reduced productivity, and 

difficulty in recruitment to roles. In addition, this could result in an increase 

in the need to access voluntary sector organisations or other Chesterfield 

Borough Council welfare related services as people struggle to make ends 

meet and fall into crisis. 

 

5.3 As the Council’s leadership is committed to ensuring that Chesterfield 

Borough Council is a responsible employer, whose pay rates meet the basic 

cost of living, this option has been disregarded.  

 

6.0 Implications for consideration – Financial and value for money 

 

6.1  The real living wage has risen to £9.90 for the financial year 2022 – 2023.   

 

6.2 257 employees currently receive a wage which is lower than the real living 

wage. 

 

6.3 If elected members choose to increase the basic rate of pay for these 

employees to £9.90 per hour, in alignment with the real living wage, the 

Council’s pay bill will increase by £81,200 including on costs.  This is broken 

down as: 

 

i. 93 employees (65.53 FTE) receive a real living wage increase of 

£0.40 per hour, totalling £62,200 including oncosts. 

ii. 14 employees (3.78 FTE) receive a real living wage increase of £0.30 

per hour, totalling £3,000 including oncosts. 

iii. 150 employees (60.36 FTE) receive a real living wage increase of 

£0.11 per hour, totalling £16,000 including oncosts.  

Page 10



 

6.4 A 2% increase in salary budgets has already been incorporated into our 

budgets, which will offset the cost of the real living wage by £47,200 

including oncosts. This leaves a budget shortfall of £34,000 including 

oncosts which is not currently funded.  

 

6.5 It is proposed that the budget shortfall is met from the budget risk reserve 

in 2022-23 and that the additional cost is built into the base budget for 

future years.  

 

6.6 The real living wage is reviewed and updated annually by the Living Wage 

Foundation.  The council will continue to track this rate and the Human 

Resources team will bring a report to Joint Cabinet and Employment and 

General Committee on an annual basis to consider whether the real living 

wage is implemented in future years.   

 

7.0 Implications for consideration – Legal 

 

7.1 There is no legal requirement to pay the real living wage.  It is a voluntary 

payment that is currently higher than the statutory National Minimum 

Wage and National Living Wage. The rate of pay is calculated based on the 

cost of living and assessed against a set basket of goods and services.  It is 

reviewed annually.  

 

8.0 Implications for consideration – Human resources 

 

8.1 257 employees currently receive a salary which is lower than the real living 

wage.  It is proposed that these employees receive a salary uplift to the 

minimum rate of pay of £9.90 per hour from 1 April 2022, enabling the 

council to continue to be a real living wage employer and pay a wage which 

meets socially accepted income standards. 

 

9.0 Implications for consideration – Council plan 

 

9.1 Payment of the real living wage supports Chesterfield Borough Council’s 

vision, values, and priorities as set out in the Council Plan. 

  

9.2 Payment of a rate of pay which takes account of spending needs will ensure 

that employees can enjoy a socially acceptable living standard.  This in turn 

will enable the Council to benefit from a happier, healthier, and more 

productive workforce, who are able to spend in our local economy, whilst 

also helping to reduce the demand for welfare support. 

Page 11



 

10.0 Implications for consideration – Climate change 

 

10.1 Aligning to the real living wage will slightly increase the Council’s pay bill 

and will result in some employees having more money to spend on the 

goods and services they need to buy. It will allow employees to be in a 

position of choice around what they buy and enable them to consider the 

carbon footprint in their decision making.  

 

  
 

11.0 Implications for consideration – Equality and diversity 

 

11.1 A full EIA was completed in 2016 when the living wage was first introduced, 

and this has been updated to reflect the current position.  A copy of this 

can be found in appendix 1.  

 

12.0 Implications for consideration – Risk management 

Page 12



 

12.1 Please populate the spreadsheet with the risks and mitigations 

 

 

Decision information 

 

Key decision number 1105 

Wards affected All wards 

 

Document information 

 

Report author 

Gemma Masoud 

Appendices to the report 

Appendix 1 Equality Impact Assessment  

 

Description of the 

Risk 

Impact Likelihood Mitigating Action Impact Likelihood 

Risk that employees 

would be disengaged, 

should we no longer 

be a living wage 

employer. 

 

 

Medium High Implement real 

living wage 

Low Low 

Risk of increased 

welfare requirements 

Medium High Implement real 

living wage 

Low Low 

Risk of 

disenfranchisement 

of staff at higher 

scale points due to 

compression of 

grades 

Medium Medium National pay award 

discussions and 

agreement to 

consider issue up 

to 2024.  Risk 

increases in later 

years as the living 

wage is forecast to 

reach over £11 by 

2024, when a 

review of pay and 

grading will be 

required. 

Medium Medium 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



       1 

Chesterfield Borough Council Equality Impact Assessment - Full Assessment Form 
 

 

Title of the policy, project, service, function or strategy:  

Service Area: DIGITAL, HR & CUSTOMER SERVICES 

Section: HR 

Lead Officer: GEMMA MASOUD 

Date of assessment: 05/22 

Is the policy, project, service, function or strategy:  

Existing X 
Changed  

New / Proposed  

 
 
Section 1 – Clear aims and objectives 

 

1. What is the aim of the policy, project, service, function or strategy? 
The aim of this policy is to implement the real Living Wage for 2022/2023 to provide an annual uplift in salary.  

 

2. Who is intended to benefit from the policy and how? 
Council employees on the lowest pay levels to bring them in line with the real Living Wage. It is decided on an annual basis subject 
to budgetary constraints. 

 

3. What outcomes do you want to achieve?  
Chesterfield Borough Council is committed to providing fair pay and good working conditions for employees.  Increasing the 

minimum rate of pay to the level of the independently calculated real living wage will ensure that the wages which are paid to 

our employees are sufficient to meet the cost of living. 

 
 

P
age 15



       2 

Section 2 – What is the impact? 

 

4. Summary of anticipated impacts.  Please tick at least one option per protected characteristic. Think about barriers people may 

experience in accessing services, how the policy is likely to affect the promotion of equality, knowledge of customer experiences to date. You 
may need to think about sub-groups within categories eg. older people, younger people, people with hearing impairment etc.  

 Potentially positive 
impact 

Potentially negative 
impact 

No disproportionate 
impact 

Age    X 

Disability and long term conditions   X 

Gender and gender reassignment X   

Marriage and civil partnership   X 

Pregnant women and people on parental leave   X 

Sexual orientation   X 

Ethnicity   X 

Religion and belief   X 

 
Section 3 – Recommendations and monitoring 

 
If you have answered that the policy, project, service, function or strategy could potentially have a negative impact on 
any of the above characteristics then a full EIA will be required.  
 

5. Should a full EIA be completed for this policy, project, service, function or strategy? 

 Yes  X No  

Please explain the reasons for this decision: 
This policy aims to promote the lowest paid staff with an uplift on pay. This group of staff are predominantly women therefore this will 
have a positive impact on this particular group 

 

P
age 16



       3 

 

Section 6 – Knowledge management and publication 

 
Please note the draft EIA should be reviewed by the appropriate Service Manager and the Policy Service before 
WBR, Lead Member, Cabinet, Council reports are produced.  
 

Reviewed by Head of Service/Service Manager Name: Gemma Masoud 

Date: 11/05/22 

Reviewed by Policy Service  
 

Name:  

Date: DD/MM/YY 

Final version of the EIA sent to Policy Service   

Decision information sent to Policy Service   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Real Living Wage Implementation
	Appendix 1 - Preliminary EIA form living wage


